MINUTES

FORT MYERS BEACH

Local Planning Agency Meeting

Town Hall – Council Chambers

2523 Estero Boulevard

Fort Myers Beach, FL 33931

Tuesday, October 27, 2009
I. CALL TO ORDER

Meeting was called to order at 10:35 AM by Chairperson Dennis Weimer.  All members were present:


Dennis Weimer


Rochelle Kay



Alan Mandel



Bill Van Duzer



Joanne Shamp


Carleton Ryffel 


 Staff present:  LPA Attorney Anne Dalton; Community Development Director Dr. Frank Shockey and Town Manager Jack Green. There were no members of the press or public present.
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

III. INVOCATION-Mr. Weimer
IV. REORGANIZATION OF  THE LPA
Mr. Kay and Mr. Mandel are to serve new terms, as appointed by the Town Council.  Ms. Dalton also pointed out that Mr. Weimer’s term was also extended by Council, through December 7, 2009.

A.  Election of New Chair

Ms. Dalton led the meeting in the vote for this position.

Mr. Weimer nominated Ms. Shamp; Mr. Mandel passed; Mr. Van Duzer passed; Ms. Kay passed; Mr. Ryffel passed; Ms. Shamp nominated Mr. Van Duzer; Mr. Van Duzer declined the nomination.  Ms. Shamp then passed on an alternate nomination.  
Ms. Dalton called for a vote on the first nomination, of Ms. Shamp for Chair:
Vote:
    Ms. Shamp was elected Chair unanimously.

B. Election of Vice Chair

Ms. Shamp asked for assistance from Ms. Dalton in this nomination and voting procedure.

Ms. Dalton called for the nominations for Vice Chair:

Ms. Kay nominated Mr. Van Duzer; Mr. Ryffel also nominated Mr. Van Duzer; Ms. Shamp nominated Mr. Van Duzer; Mr. Weimer passed; Mr. Mandel passed; Mr. Van Duzer nominated Mr. Ryffel, but Mr. Ryffel declined the nomination.  Mr. Van Duzer then passed on an alternate nomination.
Ms. Dalton called for a vote on the first nomination, of Mr. Van Duzer for Vice Chair:
Vote:
      Mr. Van Duzer was elected Vice Chair unanimously.
V.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Motion:  Mr. Van Duzer moved to adopt the minutes of September 29, 2009, as recorded.

Seconded by Mr. Mandel; 


    Mr. Weimer pointed out that the official transcriptions should now reflect the 

                change of Chair; so noted.

Mr. Ryffel referred to the bottom of page 5 of those minutes, wherein he made a   motion to include a 10 ft. buffer and asked if this was part of the official motion.  Ms. Dalton advised that this would be a discussion later.

Vote:   Motion passed 6-0.

VI. ADMINISTRATIVE AGENDA

A. LDC Chapter 34, Article IV, Div. 26-Seasonal Parking-Language discussion
Ms. Shamp asked Dr. Shockey to comment.  Dr. Shockey stated that this draft language has been revised, with Ms. Dalton’s help, and he referred to the informational packets, starting with the references in the language to specific types of parking lot details.  These have been replaced by a more general reference that would require them to be in compliance with state law.  The seasonal parking section has been revised to remove the provision for the 3 year long-term, temporary permit, as requested by the LPA, and replaced with one general permit for the 8 month period that can occur annually.  He stated that there is language at the end of Sec. 34-2022, sub. C, to address the buffer requirements, tweaked by Ms. Dalton.  
Mr. Ryffel asked Dr. Shockey to clarify this, which he did to satisfaction.  Mr. Ryffel asked for explanation of “visual screen,” but seemed to understand it to mean a fence or vegetation.  He then referred to the second item in Ms. Dalton’s memo, about the environmental impact of painting bare sand or grass and opined that this was “going a little bit overboard.”  Dr. Shockey explained that the concern here was regarding eventual runoff of any chemical paint when immersed with water.  There was some discussion about painting the ground, etc. for parking spaces and Mr. Ryffel suggested dropping the “paint” part.
Mr. Van Duzer stated that he is concerned about the handicap spaces and how they would be delineated, as well as enforcement of that.  He suggested removing that requirement completely.  Dr. Shockey explained that the Town must require some specific things for new construction applications and there is already a standard that delineates when these requirements apply. Mr. Van Duzer pointed out that to comply, there must be special surfaces for the handicap spaces as well.  Dr. Shockey agreed and Mr. Van Duzer asked why the lot owners couldn’t just use a sign to notify that their lot has no available spaces.  Ms. Dalton added that taking out the time limits could actually make these lots permanent, which would then require them to conform to all of the requirements that the existing permanent lot have.  
Mr. Ryffel stated that commercial buildings that put in parking are required to have a certain number of handicap spots per number of total spaces.  H e added that these seasonal lots are not required parking, but rather voluntary spaces over and above any commercial development.  He feels that this would eliminate the requirement for handicap spaces since this parking itself is not required parking.  Mr. Mandel asked staff if there was a specification that goes along with this ADA requirement for parking spaces.  Dr. Shockey said that there are standards for new construction and standards for alterations and cautioned that this issue is actually only dealing with very small alterations in vacant lots that are used as parking lots, surfaced with grass where “construction” and “alterations” might not be proposed.  Ms. Dalton agreed that this issue be researched with other beach communities as the question:  if you have a free-standing lot, do you need to have an ADA parking area?  There was more discussion about this.  
Mr. Weimer stated that he agrees with the legal research to be sure the Town is in compliance and suggested that there be a “disabled space” requirement that stipulates what is needed in each situation.  He recalled that the Newton property designated the handicap space by installing a blue-painted bumper in one space as well as a sign on the parking meter.  Ms. Shamp agreed that painting posts, etc. would be a better alternative to painting the ground.  She asked if there was a consensus to further research this before the LPA makes a decision.  Mr. Ryffel opined that putting a disclaimer on a property would be a red flag for someone to bring suit, and didn’t like the idea of requiring anyone to post a disclaimer.  He also felt that researching is the best next step so that the town is clear as to what is absolutely required and what is not, especially on a sand parking lot.
The consensus was that Ms. Dalton should research whether there is an ADA requirement for this type of lot; then, if there is, are there specifics as to the requirements.  Also, the disclaimer question should be answered.  

Mr. Van Duzer agreed with the language that “all parking lots require permits.”  He then referred to Sec. 34-2014, Parking Plan, wherein it states that “a parking plan is required for all uses except single family and 2 family dwelling units.” He feels that a plan should be required for all uses, in view of the other new permitting requirements coming soon.  Dr. Shockey explained that this language is in here because the section is specifically addressing parking lots so these regulations do not apply to single family homes.  Discussion ensued about the LDC changes pertaining to residential driveways, parking, etc., which are being considered and how that may be affected.   Mr. Weimer asked if there was a way to be sure that keeping the wording the way it is will not negatively impact any decisions made with regard to new construction of single family homes in the future.  Dr. Shockey explained how each is different and that this wording should not have any impact on the private homes.  Ms. Dalton agreed that this part should be taken out because there is specific mention in most areas of parking lots and, she feels that if this is left in, it could create an ambiguity between two different provisions of the code.  Mr. Weimer suggested just having the code state “a parking plan is required for all parking lots…” but Dr. Shockey explained that there are also times when other businesses need to submit parking plans and they may not necessarily be “parking lots.”  
Ms. Shamp stated the consensus as follows:  removal of the words “except single family residences and two-family dwelling units.”  She asked for a show of hands to remove those words; 4 hands were raised.  
Mr. Van Duzer referred to page 7 and said he was concerned about the wording, suggesting that it be changed as recommended by Ms. Dalton.  

Discussion ensued about the steps and requirements for someone to have a seasonal parking lot today.   

Ms. Shamp asked if there was a consensus to follow the recommendation of the attorney regarding page 1, Sec. 34-2011b1, changing the wording to “all seasonal parking lots require permits…” A show of hands indicated there was a consensus.  She also asked for consensus on the suggestion by Mr. Weimer that the same wording be used to make it consistent with what was already agreed to.  A consensus was met for this issue too.  
Ms. Shamp referred to page 7 and the requirements for buffering and asked if this wording protects adjoining properties to be able to see when people are pulling out of their driveways.  Dr. Shockey stated that there is specific language requiring residents to comply with the visibility triangle, and he read the parts of the section.  Ms. Shamp was concerned about code enforcement and pointed out that there is no requirement in this draft for an initial inspection.  She asked if there is some mechanism for an inspection for initial compliance and, after Dr. Shockey basically advised that there is nothing concrete, she asked if the LPA felt that this was necessary.  There was a consensus that stating in the regulation that an inspection is required would not be necessary.  
Mr. Ryffel asked Dr. Shockey if there was a buffer requirement for along the road.  Dr. Shockey referred him to the section addressing this.  He also asked if the only place allowed for a seasonal parking lot is in the area zoned commercial.  He said that the language has been adjusted to address that, adding that the lots are also allowed in planned development areas and zoning districts where the use is listed specifically, such as the “limited retail” group in Table 34-1.  Mr. Ryffel added a suggestion for the handicap space issue, suggesting that there be a stipulation wherein the handicap space becomes required after the parking lot becomes permanent instead of seasonal.  
Ms. Shamp asked for a consensus regarding bringing this back once more before moving to a hearing so that it can be revised and discussed again in a casual setting before final vote to move ahead with specific recommendations; all were in favor.   

Motion:    Mr. Van Duzer moved to adjourn as the LPA and Reconvene as the HPB.

Seconded by Mr. Ryffel;

Vote:        Motion passed 6-0.

VII.       ADJOURN AS LPA; RECONVENE AS HPB
Adjourned as LPA at 11:55 am
VIII. REORGANIZATION OF THE HPB
A.  Election of Chair

Ms. Dalton asked for nominations.  Ms. Shamp nominated Ms. Kay; Mr. Ryffel passed; Ms. Kay passed; Mr. Van Duzer passed; Mr. Mandel passed and Mr. Weimer passed.  

Ms. Dalton called for a vote on the first nomination, of Ms. Kay for the position of Chair.

Vote:          Ms. Kay was unanimously elected Chair.
B. Election of Vice Chair

Mr. Weimer passed; Mr. Mandel passed; Mr. Ryffel passed; Mr. Van Duzer nominated Ms. Shamp; Ms. Kay passed; Ms. Shamp nominated Mr. Van Duzer, who declined.  Ms. Shamp then passed.

Ms. Dalton called for a vote on the first nomination, of Ms. Shamp for the position of Vice Chair.

Vote:          Ms. Shamp was unanimously elected Vice Chair.
Ms. Kay called the meeting to order at 12:00 Noon and called for the appointment of new members to the Historic Advisory Committee.
C. Appointment of additional members

Motion:    Mr. Weimer moved to appoint Ms. Kay, Ms. Shamp and Mr. Van Duzer as the 

HPB representatives to the HAC and reincorporate the four members of the HAC from the Historical Society (Roxie Smith, AJ Bassett, Fran Santini and Jack Underhill). 
Seconded by Ms. Kay.

Vote:         Motion passed 6-0.
Ms. Shamp discussed the minutes from the May meeting of the HAC.  She reported that they had discussed the HAC input to the HPB’s budget.  She said that they discussed ideas and prioritizing the projects planned for the future, such as installation of the current plaques; media coverage of all items addressed by the group; establishing walking tours; updating the Comp Plan; developing a vista on Old San Carlos and the proposed cost for that, as well as design; additional goals were discussed and planned for action over the next 4 years (refer to minutes).

Ms. Shamp stated that these goals and budgeting items should be available for members to review and hopefully comment on at the next meeting. 
Mr. Van Duzer commented that the report was well done and Mr. Weimer agreed, adding that it should go forward to the Council regarding future budget.  Ms. Shamp suggested that she revise the report a bit and prepare it to distribute and discuss at the next meeting, possible even form a resolution then based on the report.  
Motion:   Mr. Weimer moved to adjourn as the HPB and reconvene as the LPA; 
Seconded by Ms. Shamp.
Vote:        Motion passed 6-0

     Meeting adjourned at 12:20 PM
IX. ADJOURN AS HPB; RECONVENE AS LPA
Ms. Shamp reconvened the meeting at 12:20 PM with all members present.
X. LPA MEMBER ITEMS AND REPORTS

Dr. Shockey asked if Mr. Van Duzer or Ms. Kay had any update about the storm water study.  Ms. Kay agreed with Mr. Van Duzer that there be no action until they receive the report from the engineers. Cathy Lewis addressed the meeting and said that she has a meeting next week with the engineers who have drafted the study but she didn’t have an exact date as to when the report would be ready to present.  
Ms. Kay asked if the fishing pier will be public and if, and when, it will be open.  Dr. Shockey said that he didn’t know when this would be proposed but thought that it may involve LPA decision on some issues involving the pier.  

Mr. Weimer congratulated Ms. Shamp on her appointment as Chair and reminded her of a few meeting responsibilities, such as updating the Action List at the end of the meeting.  In view of this he advised that part of the planning for the list involved responsibilities defined in the latest meetings with the Town Manager and Mayor, to include periodic meetings with Town Council in workshops.  He also reminded that the PnP mandates that the LPA must appoint a member to attend the M&P meetings.  

Mr. Mandel had been the representative for the M&P and he volunteered to continue in this capacity.  (Short pause for Ms. Dalton to confer with Mr. Mandel).  
Ms. Dalton advised the LPA that Mr. Mandel was a Town Council candidate so there are specifics to his role which must be addressed.  She shared with Mr. Mandel, and he requested that she advise the LPA also, that the role of this liaison must be very clearly defined about what kinds of roles does that person have and not have.  She said this is important because the M&P meetings do not take public comment, so there could be candidates in the audience who may not be there as with the opportunity to comment and/or their roles can become unclear, opening the door for elections or ethics complaints. Ms. Shamp asked if there were any specific roles that were of concern to Ms. Dalton.  She said that she would be concerned about the quasi-judicial issue; the council discussing a matter which may then move forward to a hearing.  Discussion ensued regarding the role of the representative.  
Ms. Shamp asked for a motion to continue the current appointment of Alan Mandel as the LPA representative to the M&P, with an alternate, and that the function of the representative is to engage in M&P in budget discussions that are concerns to CIP; to not participate in topics of discussion that may come before the LPA in quasi-judicial proceedings; to discuss budgetary items and long term planning so as to be able to report to the LPA for its CIP planning.  There is also an understanding that there be a workshop scheduled in the future to further define the role of the representative in the M&P process with Town Council.  
Motion:    Mr. Weimer so moved with the addition of Ms. Shamp as the alternate to Mr.   

                  Mandel as the representative; 

Seconded  by Mr. Van Duzer.

Vote:
      Motion passed 6-0

Mr. Mandel continued to report on his meeting with the town manager and the Mayor.  He said that they wanted him to relay to the LPA that they only needed the LPA’s recommendations as to whether or not people on the beach can have open containers of alcoholic beverages.  Mr. Weimer commented that no matter what they were looking for, every COP that has come before the LPA about this ended up being an in depth discussion of hours of operation, inside/outside seating, etc. and he cautioned that the LPA as a body must deal with the whole issue.  
XI. LPA ATTORNEY ITEMS

Nothing to report.

XII. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR ITEMS

Dr. Shockey addressed the meeting and discussed scheduling future LPA meetings.  He said that they had agreed to cancel the meeting scheduled just before Thanksgiving and 2 meetings were penciled in for December, between 12/8 and 12/22.  He asked if the members felt it would be best to continue meeting twice a month for the upcoming year or just meet once a month, and keep the option open to expand when necessary.  Ms. Shamp asked who favored meeting once a month and 5 out of 6 were in favor.  Mr. Weimer opposed.  She then asked what day of the week would be best.  Ms. Shamp suggested that they keep to the second Tuesday of the month for regular meetings and then the fourth Tuesday as the additional meeting, if needed.  All agreed.  She then asked for schedules for November and December of 2009 and decided that 11/10 and 12/15 would be the last meetings for 2009.  January 12, 2010 is the scheduled meeting for January.  After that, the schedule follows as the second Tuesday of each month.  Dr. Shockey promised to create a memo containing the dates for the upcoming year.
XIII. LPA  ACTION ITEMS
Hearings:
· Animal Control-long term - Mr. Mandel: TBD
· Gulfview - Vacation-TBD

· Pink Shell-12/7/09 Mr. Weimer or Ms. Kay
Continued LPA hearings:  
· Shipwreck - Jan. 12, 2010
Future Work Activites: 

· Present ROW resolution to Council-11/10/09; Ms. Shamp
· Storm Water-pending;  Dr. Shockey/Kay/Van Duzer
· Seasonal Parking- 12/15/09; final review

· Alcoholic Beverages-Dr. Shockey/Mr. Weimer; 11/10/09  (Discussion ensued and it was decided that a statement be drafted to the Council saying that the LPA, in its consideration of the consultant’s report, did not deem that expansion of open container onto additional properties would not be appropriate…or something to that effect.  Ms. Dalton will draft the statement for the next meeting.) 
· HPB Vistas – Budget Proposal - Ms. Shamp; 11/10
· Discussion of the role of the representative to the M&P – TBD

· Discussion about moving the LPA meetings to 9:00 AM or a different day – Dr. Shockey

XIV. PUBLIC COMMENT

No further comments.

Ms. Shamp asked for a motion to adjourn.

Motion:   Mr. Mandel moved to adjourn.
Seconded by Mr. Ryffel;
Vote:       Motion carried 6-0.
XV.  ADJOURNMENT
 Adjourned at 1:30 PM.

Next meeting November 10, 2009 at 10:30 AM
Adopted _______________________ with/without changes.  Motion by ___________________



(DATE)

Vote:______________________  
________________________________________________






Joanne Shamp, LPA Chair

· End of document

LPA-October 27, 2009
Page 1 of 8

